
Milton Keynes City Council, Civic, 1 Saxon Gate East, Milton Keynes, MK9 3EJ  Tel: 01908 691691 

    
 

 
 

CENTRAL AREA GROWTH BOARD 
 

When: Wednesday 14 February 2024 at 10:00 
Where: Suite 1.02, Civic, 1 Saxon Gate East, Milton Keynes, 

MK9 3EJ  
 
This meeting will not be live streamed, but a recording of the meeting will be available on 
YouTube as soon as practical after the event. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Central Area Growth Board 

Councillor Marland (Chair) 

Councillors Councillor Nunn (Vice-Chair), Councillor Simmons, Councillor Smithers, 
Councillor Weir and Councillor Zerny 

 
Enquiries 
Please contact Peter Brown on 01908 253671 or peter.brown@milton-keynes.gov.uk 
 
Information about membership and the Terms of Reference is available here  
  

(1)

https://www.youtube.com/user/MiltonKeynesCouncil
https://milton-keynes.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s1364/Central%20Area%20Growth%20Board%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf


 

Public attendance / Participation 
 
All our meetings are open to the public to attend. 
 
We use our best efforts to either live stream meetings on YouTube, or upload recordings afterwards. From 
time to time there are technical problems which could mean we are unable to stream the meeting. When 
this happens, our meetings will continue, and we will do our best to upload a recording of the meeting after 
it takes place. Meeting minutes form the formal record and are published after every meeting. 
 
Agenda 
 
Agendas and reports for the majority of the Council’s public meetings can be accessed online. 
 
Webcasting and permission to be filmed 
 
Please note that this meeting will be filmed either for live broadcast or to view after the meeting on the 
internet and can be viewed online at YouTube. Generally, the public gallery is not filmed, but by entering 
the meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to be filmed.  
 
Recording of Meetings 
 
The proceedings at this meeting (which will include those making representations by video or audio 
conference) will be recorded and retained for a period of six months, for the purpose of webcasting and 
preparing the minutes of the meeting. 
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, you can film, photograph, 
record or use social media at any Council meetings that are open to the public. If you are reporting the 
proceedings, please respect other members of the public at the meeting who do not want to be filmed. You 
should also not conduct the reporting so that it disrupts the good order and conduct of the meeting. While 
you do not need permission, you can contact the Council’s staff in advance of the meeting to discuss 
facilities for reporting the proceedings and a contact is included on the front of the agenda, or you can liaise 
with staff at the meeting. View the Guidance from the Department for Communities and Local Government 
  

(2)

https://milton-keynes.moderngov.co.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/user/MiltonKeynesCouncil
http://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/343182/140812_Openness_Guide.pdf


 

Agenda 
 
 
1.   Welcome and Introductions  

 The Chair to welcome members of the Committee, officers, any external 
witnesses, and the public to the meeting and introduce committee members, 
officers and witnesses who are present. 

 
2.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 6) 

 To approve, and the Chair to sign as a correct record, the Minutes of the meeting 
of the Central Area Growth Board held on 12 December 2023. 

 
Notice of Intention to Hold the Meeting in Private  

The public and press may be excluded from the meeting by virtue of Paragraph 3 
(Information relating to the Financial or Business Affairs of the Authority) of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, in order that the meeting may consider 
the exempt minutes to the previous meeting. 
 
2(a) Exempt Minutes  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 To approve, and the Chair to sign as a correct record, the Exempt Minutes of the 
meeting of the Central Area Growth Board held on 12 December 2023. 

 
3.   Disclosures of Interest  

 Councillors to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests, other registerable 
interests, or non-registerable interests (including other pecuniary interests) they 
may have in the business to be transacted, and officers to declare any interests 
they may have in any contract to be considered. 

 
4.   LEP Transition Update (Pages 11 - 14) 

 To receive an update on the LEP transition. 
 
5.   Proposed Business Engagement Plans (Pages 15 - 24) 

 To receive an update on the proposed business engagement plans. 
 
6.   Update on Branding Exercise (Pages 25 - 26) 

 To receive an update on the branding exercise. 

 

 

(3)



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Central Area Growth Board held on Tuesday 12 December 
2023 at 10:00 

 
Present: Councillor Nunn, Councillor Simmons, Councillor Smithers, Councillor Weir, 

Councillor Zerny and Councillor R Bradburn (In place of Marland) 

 H Chipping (Chief Executive - SEMLEP) and P Horrocks (Chair - SEMLEP) 

Apologies: Councillor Marland (Milton Keynes City Council) 

Officers: M Bracey, G Candler, L Church, M Coiffait, V Hlomuka, S Lloyd, S McNamara, 
L Seymour, P Thomas and P Brown 

 
CGB13 Welcome and Introductions  

In the absence of Councillor Marland, Councillor Nunn welcomed attendees to the 
meeting. 

CGB14 Minutes  

RESOLVED:  

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Central Area Growth Board held on 19 October 
2023 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

CGB15 Disclosures of Interest  

None received. 

CGB16 Update on Business Engagement  

The Head of Economic Development (MKCC) introduced the report and noted that 
governance guidance was clear to integrate the business voice within any new 
arrangements.  The leaders had recently met and this report outlined the high level 
principles of engagement.  These were still in their formative stages and recognised that 
authorities want to co-develop the future of business engagement structures with their 
local business communities. 

It was noted that business representatives broadly welcomed the high-level principles that 
had been set out and they reflected the desire of the business community for a proper 
strategic forum, this was seen as a critical element.  The mechanics of the transition of 
governance was also key for example who on existing SEMLEP boards who would be 
invited to be part of the new arrangements.  

RESOLVED: 

1. That the report be noted. 

2. To bring an update to the February meeting of the Central Area Growth Board on 
business engagement. 

(5)

Item 2



 

CGB17 Update on Future of LEP Functions  

The Chair noted that the paper contained an exempt annex containing further 
recommendations / decisions. It was proposed that the meeting consider the report and 
then consider moving not exempt session to consider the annex.  

The Head of Economic Growth and Inward Investment (WNC) introduced the report noting 
that the design principles were discussed and agreed at the workshop that had recently 
been held with leaders.  There was further work required focused around governance 
arrangements and a revised terms of reference for the Central Area Growth Board.  The 
Draft Integration Plan had recently been submitted to central government.  West 
Northamptonshire Council, who would host the LEP functions going forward, had 
established an internal project team to look at elements such as governance, legal, HR, the 
funding envelope, communications etc and officers continued to work closely with the LEP 
to prepare for the transfer. 

As the meeting would now consider the exempt annex to this report, Councillor Nunn 
moved the following motion which was seconded by Councillor Simmons: 

“That the press and public be excluded from the meeting by virtue of Paragraph 3 
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person, including 
the authority holding that information) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, in order that the meeting may consider the exempt annex to the report.” 

The meeting then moved into private session. 

RESOLVED: 

1. That the report be noted.  

2. That a further update on progress with LEP integration, be brought to the February 
meeting of the Growth Board. 

3. That the press and public be excluded from the meeting by virtue of Paragraph 3 
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person, 
including the authority holding that information) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, in order that the meeting may consider the exempt 
annex to the report. 

 

(6)



Document is Restricted

(7)

Item 2(a)
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Central Area Growth Board Report 
14 February 2023 

Update on Transition of LEP Functions to West Northamptonshire 
Council 

  

Report author
  

Louise Seymour 
Assistant Director for Place Shaping, West Northamptonshire 
Council 

1. Recommendations 

1.1 That the Growth Board: 

a) note the update contained within this report; 

b) agree in principle to establish a Joint Committee, and request that 
arrangements to do so are progressed by the respective Monitoring 
Officers in consultation with the Leaders of the member authorities; and  

c) consider the desirability of a further meeting in March/early April.  

2. Background  

2.1 The decision of the CAGB on the 12 December 2023 has allowed officers at 
West Northamptonshire Council (WNC) alongside colleagues on the Task & 
Finish Group to progress work to allow for the transfer of LEP functions and 
staff from 1 April 2024. The decisions stated: 

That the Growth Board agree that option 2* is the preferred funding envelope 
and budget option for the delivery of LEP functions for 2024/25 and that WNC 
will proceed with the TUPE process on this basis, and a detailed budget for this 
option will be brought to the February Growth Board meeting, subject to: 

a) written confirmation by the end of the calendar year from SEMLEP, that in 
excess of £1.5 million of their reserves are available for supporting the 
continuation of services;  

b) West Northamptonshire Council committing to review option 2 to reduce 
the call on reserves as far as practicable (in consultation with the Chief 
Executives of the Growth Board Member Councils); 

c) a formal review the LEP services and budget being undertaken, and report 
brought back to the Growth Board within 6 months, in order to prepare for 
financial year 2025/26; and 

(11)

Item 4



d) Chief Executives agreeing to support West Northamptonshire Council via a 
task and finish group. 

* Option 2 Utilising Government funding, any existing project funding and 
reserves to create a stronger year one position 

2.2 A fundamental principle for all six local authorities for the future delivery of the 
LEP functions is that the service must be financially sustainable. A financial 
envelope of £1,875,988 has been agreed as a budget for 24/25 which allows for 
the transfer of Strategic Economic Planning, Growth Hub and Careers Hub, 
together with support roles. This budget draws on £495,000 of approved LEP 
reserves. The agreement to use of reserves in year one will allow WNC to 
establish and review the structure and functions and future budget required. 
This will go back to the CAGB following review after 6 months, with a view to 
reducing the use of reserves and finding a sustainable funding model for the 
service functions and a budget for 2025/26. 

2.3 Written confirmation has been received confirming that SEMLEP will have in 
excess of £1.5m of reserves available for supporting the continuation of 
services in 2024/25. 

3. Update 

TUPE Process 

3.1 WNC have identified the services and staff to transfer to WNC from 1 April 
2024. SEMLEP have provided the employee information and the measures 
letter has been sent. TUPE consultation commences from the week of the 5 

February. 

WNC Cabinet Paper 

3.2 WNC Cabinet on the 13 February 2024 will consider a paper and 
recommendations relating to the transfer of LEP functions. A copy of this report 
and recommendations can be found here. 

Joint Authority Agreement  

3.3 The paper considered by CAGB at its meeting on the 12 December outlined the 
requirement for a joint agreement relating the future hosting arrangements for 
the LEP functions. This agreement is intended to ensure that all partner 
authorities are committed to the arrangement and to ensure that future 
liabilities or reserves are equitably to ensure that in a future scenario where the 
government funding is withdrawn, or future government guidance requires the 
winding up of the LEP functions. 

(12)

https://westnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=1316&Ver=4


3.4 WNC have instructed lawyers to draw up heads and terms and an agreement 
for review and agreement by all partner authorities. This is due to be circulated, 
alongside a template report and recommendations which all councils are asked 
to seek appropriate executive approval for the hosting arrangements and joint 
authority agreement. 

Future Governance  

3.5 The CAGB has become the governance structure for overseeing the decisions 
relating to the new hosting arrangement following the winding up of SEMLEP. 
This was not its original remit and therefore whilst it enables the six local 
authority leaders to come together and represent their individual councils, its 
terms of reference are no longer fit for purpose and the current arrangements 
rely on decisions endorsed by the Growth Board, being subsequently agreed at 
member authority level. It is therefore proposed that a local authority Joint 
Committee is established which would have only the local authority leaders or 
deputies able to form the Committee and make decisions relating the hosted 
LEP functions. Milton Keynes City Council act as host and secretariat for the 
CAGB and it is suggested that this arrangement could continue. 

Business Board 

3.6 Government guidance was published on the 2 August 2023 and subsequently 
on the 19 December 2023 which highlights the need to embed a strong, 
independent, and diverse local business voice into the new arrangements. A 
separate paper provides further discussion and background to the proposals. 

Accountable Body 

3.7 A meeting with Luton Borough Council as existing accountable body is 
scheduled. All accountable body functions will sit with WNC from 1 April 2024, 
however clarification regarding residual accountable body functions is required. 
A verbal update will be provided at the CAGB, following further discussion with 
Luton Borough Council. 

3.8 It should be noted that a further report to the Board will be required to set out 
the detailed budget, including management fees, transition costs, residual costs 
(including LBC residual accountable body costs), and rebranding. Whilst the 
next CAGB/Joint Committee is not currently scheduled until June, members 
may consider an earlier meeting desirable. 

  

(13)



Branding 

3.9 MKCC have, on behalf of the CAGB, appointed Whistlejacket to deliver a 
proposal for new branding and identity. A separate update is provided by MKCC 
at this meeting. It should be noted however that in order to ensure a smooth 
and effective transfer of functions a new name and identity for the combined 
area, strategic economic planning, growth hub and careers hub is needed at 
least by the beginning of March to allow for domain names to be established 
and new email addresses for staff. 
 

(14)



Central Area Growth Board Report 
14 February 2023 

Proposed Business Engagement Plans for LEP Functions from 1 
April 2024 

  

Report author
  

Vicky Hlomuka 
Head of Economic Growth and Inward Investment, 
West Northamptonshire Council 

1. Recommendations 

1.1 That the report be noted. 

1.2 That the Growth Board endorse:  

a) the business engagement principles set out in section 4 of this report; and  

b) the timescale and recruitment plans for the business board as set out in 
section 5 of this report. 

1.3 That the Growth Board nominate a member to lead the recruitment panel and 
activity. 

1.4 That the Growth Board endorse the Terms of Reference for the business board 
once drafted by written procedure before 15 April 2024. 

2. Background 

2.1 Since the 12 December 2023 Central Area Growth Board meeting, work has 
been underway on both the future delivery of LEP services and the future of 
engagement with business including consulting key business representative 
organisations on the plans to incorporate the voice of business in future 
arrangements.  

2.2 Government guidance on the integration of LEP services into Local Authorities 
highlights the need to embed a strong, independent, and diverse local business 
voice into the new arrangements. Additional Government guidance was 
published on the 19 December which provided further detail on business 
engagement and the voice of business in LEP integration plans as outlined in 
section 3.  

2.3 The work on business engagement following government guidance comprises a 
broader programme of work which encompasses the transition of LEP functions 
to the host local authority, West Northamptonshire on behalf of the six local 
authorities in the South East Midlands. There are many aspects to this work, 
with a challenging timescale to complete the transfer by (1 April 2024). (15)

Item 5



2.4 The proposals set out in this paper represent the steer that the Leaders of the 
six local authorities provided at an away discussion focussed on LEP transition 
in November 2023. 

2.5 Following guidance received from Government on 19 December 2023, the Local 
Authority officer task and finish group on LEP transition met on 15 January 2024 
and developed further detail to the proposal based on the latest government 
guidance. The proposals set out in this paper are therefore subject to input 
from and final endorsement of the Growth Board on 14 February 2024, 
incorporating feedback received from stakeholders. 

3. Government guidance on the voice of business and feedback 
from stakeholder consultation 

3.1 Government guidance was published on the 2 August 2023 and subsequently 
on the 19 December 2023 which highlights the need to embed a strong, 
independent, and diverse local business voice into the new arrangements. This 
is fully supported by the members of the Central Area Growth Board. Key points 
from the two sets of Government guidance are summarised below, some of 
which were only published by Government on the 19 December: 

a) The expectation for local authorities to create or continue to engage with 
an economic growth board (or similar) within their functional geography. 

b) Suggestions of the types of things the private sector could add value to 
within new arrangements such as enhancing local economic strategics and 
interventions, providing challenging and insight on business impacts of 
public sector initiatives and providing the view of local businesses as part of 
regional decision making. 

c) An expectation that membership of the Board be selected and recruited in 
an open and transparent process and that terms of reference of the Board 
manages issues such as conflict of interest, confidentiality, gateway criteria 
or disqualification/removal procedures. 

d) Ensuring the governance structure delivers an independent business voice. 
For example, in choice of Chair and the appointment process, how terms of 
reference are set, how decisions are made and agreed within the board 
(and disputes managed), and in managing public communications. 

e) Ensuring the board is representative of the whole geography. 

f) Types of activity the board is involved in could include consultation on 
emerging plans, engagement with district councils, Towns Boards and 
UKSPF programmes (where appropriate), endorsement for significant public 
funding proposals and linkages with wider plans and engagement 
structures such as Growth Hubs, LSIPS and Careers Hubs. (16)



g) Local authorities are also asked to consider how the Board will relate to 
other local for a e.g. Town Deal Boards and relevant wider pan-regional 
economic planning organisations e.g. Midlands Engine. 

3.2 The Growth Board have also been undertaking engagement with local 
stakeholders over January and February 2024 to gain feedback from local 
businesses and business representative organisations to ensure their views are 
taken into account in the new model. This includes: 

a) Engaging relevant SEMLEP business engagement groups and stakeholders – 
including the Business Engagement group (5 Jan 2024), the SEMLEP board 
(22 Jan 2024) 

b) Meeting with business leaders who wrote to the Central Area Growth 
Board in summer 2023, to gain their views and input – 31 Jan 2024 

c) Meeting with the Milton Keynes Business Council – 14 Feb 2024 

d) Reviewing the results of the autumn 2023 SEMLEP business survey – which 
surveyed 2500 businesses at random across the SEMLEP geography in 
October 2023. 

3.3 Feedback from this consultation has been valuable in shaping the proposed 
model for business engagement and some of the key points of the engagement 
include: 

a) A strong desire for business support to continue and reassurance that the 
Growth Hub will be continuing under the new arrangements. 

b) The business survey indicated that the top economic development 
functions that businesses want to see local government focus on include: 
delivering infrastructure improvements to encourage business and 
economic growth (e.g. transport, broadband); securing funding to support 
new investment/projects; attracting new businesses into the area and 
helping ensure an appropriate supply of skilled labour is available to meet 
business demand. 

c) That there needs to be a clear purpose and remit for the Board which will 
motivate businesses and stakeholders to engage with the Board and 
provide a meaningful outcome. 

d) Recognition of the importance of the skills agenda to businesses and the 
remit of the board. 

e) The size of the board needs to be large enough to be representative but 
small enough that all voices can be heard and opportunities for input are 
provided. 

(17)



f) A suggestion the role of the business board chair would be an ‘associate 
member’ rather than an ‘observer’ on the Growth Board as well as 
considering the role and number of Leaders who attend the business board. 

g) A suggestion that existing sector groups could be utilised rather than 
creating new ones for the CAGB. 

h) A suggestion that business people are involved in the board recruitment. 

3.4 Further feedback received from sessions which have not yet taken place will be 
used to sense check the model proposed below to enable the finalisation of 
arrangements. 

4. The proposed model for engaging with businesses in the new 
arrangement  

Remit of the Board  

4.1 The Central Area Leaders have agreed the intention to create an advisory 
Business Board or similar to help inform and shape the work of the Central Area 
Growth Board moving forwards and which would report directly into the 
Central Area Growth Board. The defined geography of the Growth Board is 
Bedford, Central Bedfordshire, Luton, Milton Keynes, North Northamptonshire 
and West Northamptonshire local authority areas. 

Purpose of the Board 

4.2 The following set out the suggested main purpose of the Business Board: 

a) Providing a co-ordinated business voice for issues of common interest 
affecting the economy of the defined geography 

b) Representing business to make sure the right resources are present in the 
defined geography 

c) Helping to shape economic strategy to support local decision making 

d) Shaping the regional employment and skills agenda 

e) Engaging stakeholders and other businesses to ensure wide participation of 
key sectors, advisory groups and the wider community 

f) Stretching thinking, exploring creative options and innovative ways to 
tackle challenges faced by businesses in the defined geography 

g) Maximising the benefits of the Oxford Cambridge Pan Regional Partnership 
and other relevant regional bodies for the defined geography  

  

(18)



Composition of the board 

4.3 The intention is to create a business advisory board to inform the Central Area 
Growth Board and provide an independent business voice to the six local 
authorities represented on the Central Area Growth Board. 

4.4 The board would be advisory in nature, and have an independent business 
chair, elected through an open recruitment process. 

4.5 The intention would be to recruit board members from across the defined 
geography with a minimum of 12 board members and a maximum of 20 board 
members. 

4.6 The intention would be to have a minimum of 2 board members from each of 
the local authority areas within the defined geography.  

4.7 Board membership would be representational and diverse to reflect the broad 
range of sectors and sizes of businesses and stakeholders in the defined 
geography, with an intention to have representation from: 

Type of specialism or 
interest area 

Number of 
places 
available 

Any additional criteria 

Business representative 
organisation 

Minimum 1  Can demonstrate scale of 
representation from the defined 
geography 

Key growth sectors Minimum 3 Can demonstrate expertise and 
alignment to key growth sectors 
within the defined geography, for 
example high tech/innovation, 
logistics, visitor economy  

Rural business 
representative 

Minimum 1  Can demonstrate experience and 
understanding of the issues faced 
by rural businesses 

SME (small and medium 
enterprise 
representative) 

Minimum 1 Is in a senior management position 
within a small or medium sized 
business within the defined 
geography 

Large business 
representative 

Minimum 1 Is in a senior management position 
within a large business within the 
defined geography 

FE sector representative  Minimum 1 Is in a senior management position 
within the further education 
sector within the defined 
geography 

HE sector representative  Minimum 1 Is in a senior management position 
within the higher education sector 
within the defined geography (19)



VCSE representative Minimum 1 Can demonstrate experience and 
understanding of the issues faced 
by the voluntary, community and 
social enterprise sector 

Local business board 
representatives 

Minimum 2 Is currently chairing a local 
business board within the defined 
geography 

Representative from 
relevant pan regional 
partnership / body  

Minimum 1  Is currently involved in a relevant 
pan regional partnership board 

Principles of the board  

4.8 The board will be diverse and representational of the businesses and 
stakeholders within the defined geography. 

4.9 The board will have a clear relationship with the Central Area Growth Board, 
with the business chair (and other members for relevant topics) being invited to 
be an associate member/observer of the Central Area Growth Board. A Leader 
from the CAGB will also lead on business engagement and at least one CAGB 
member will attend the business board. 

4.10 The board will provide an important advisory role to the Central Area Growth 
Board. 

4.11 Conflicts of interest will be managed appropriately.  

4.12 All board members will be expected to sign a code of conduct before attending 
a board meeting. 

4.13 Board meetings will take place quarterly unless otherwise agreed. 

4.14 Board meetings will be supported by secretariat support provided by officer 
support from within the transitioned LEP team. 

4.15 Recruitment to the board will be open and transparent – through an open 
process involving an application process and interviews. A recruitment panel 
will oversee the process, with a CAGB member chairing the panel.  

4.16 Board members will be recruited to a three-year term in accordance with terms 
of reference for the board. 

Governance structure  

4.17 The business board would report to the Central Area Growth board as 
described in section 4.4. It would also have oversight of the Growth Hub board 
and the Careers Hub steering group as indicated below. 

(20)



 
 

5. Timescale, interim arrangements and next steps 

5.1 Once the principles of the business engagement approach are agreed by the 
Growth Board, having taken into account feedback from stakeholders, officers 
will work on developing the terms of reference and recruitment plan for the 
business board working to the following suggested timeline: 

Activity Target date 
Develop the terms of reference for the business 
board and any other associated policies  15 April ‘24 

Form the recruitment panel  15 April ‘24 
Finalise the recruitment pack  15 April ‘24 
Finalise the communication plan for recruitment 15 April ‘24 
Launch the board recruitment w/c 15 April ‘24 
Board recruitment closes Mon 20 May ‘24 
Interviews of prospective board members w/c 27 May ‘24 
Appointments of new board members w/c 3 June ‘24 
First meeting of the business board  w/c 24 June ‘24 

Quarterly meetings of the business board  On a quarterly 
schedule from June ‘24 

 (21)



5.2 In recognition of the fact that the new business board is not likely to be 
operational until June 2024, it is recommended that the Growth Board consider 
interim arrangements particularly to assist with the requirement to publish an 
existing, updated or new economic strategy within six months of receiving the 
funding. The specific suggestions would be: 

a) That the Growth Hub board continues in its current format for the 
financial year 2024/2025 to assist with oversight of the Growth Hub and 
provide oversight of performance and delivery. 

b) That the Careers Hub establish a Steering Group to oversee Careers Hub 
activity by September 2024 to provide a similar function for the Careers 
Hub. 

c) That the business board will provide a clear link to any supporting sector 
groups and business engagement groups, to ensure the widest 
representation of stakeholders is represented through the business board 
(as outlined in appendix A – below) 

d) That options are explored for interim arrangements for a period of six 
months to provide the business voice and strategic input into the 
development of the refreshed or new economic strategy which needs to 
be published within six months of receiving funding for 24/25.  

 

  

(22)



Appendix A 

In accordance with the diagram in 4.5.1, there are a number of existing sector 
and business groups within the SEMLEP governance structure. For 2024/2025, 
the proposal for each is outlined below: 

Group Remit Proposal for 24/25 
Creative and Cultural 
Industries Group 

Representatives from 
the creative and cultural 
sector 

The Growth Hub will 
work with the 
independent Chair to 
continue this group 

Logistics Group Representatives from 
the logistics sector 

Seek a new host 
organisation for this 
group 

High tech innovation 
group 

Representatives from 
the high performance 
engineering sector 

This group is not 
currently meeting, and 
during 24/25 officers 
will determine whether 
there is benefit in re-
establishing a group for 
this sector 

Planners forum Planning officers across 
the local authorities 

To continue – 
requesting a local 
authority takes on the 
responsibility to 
organise the meetings 

Local Nature 
Partnership 

Focussed on bringing 
improvements to the 
local natural 
environment 

Environment Lead for 
the OxCam PRP will 
take this group on 

PDIIDG (Property 
Development 
Investment and 
Infrastructure Delivery 
Group) 

Representatives from 
the commercial 
property / developer 
sector 

tbc 

SEMU (South East 
Midlands Universities) 

Meeting of universities In agreement with the 
group – look at 
whether this is retired 
in place of the Arc 
Universities group 

Vice Chancellors Annual 
Meeting  

Meeting of university 
vice chancellors 

To be confirmed  

IIBRG (Inward 
Investment and 
Business Retention 
Group) 

Local authority officers 
forum for inward 
investment 

Will continue as a local 
authority officers group 
– feeding into the PRP 
Investment steering 
group – need a local (23)



authority to organise 
the meetings 

Banking Forum Representatives from 
the banking community 

Growth Hub to lead 
and broaden to include 
other investment 
opportunities 

Business Engagement 
Group (BEG) 

Business representative 
organisations sharing 
intelligence on key 
issues 

To continue - Growth 
Hub to support 

Ambassadors Business 
representatives who 
champion the region 

Has not been active for 
a while. Group will be 
stood down for 24/25. 

Food and drink Representatives from 
the Food and Drink 
sector 

To continue – chaired 
by Mallows Company 

Rural Group Representatives from 
the Rural sector 

To continue – chaired 
by Ngage Solutions 

Business Support 
providers forum 

Representatives from 
business support 
organisations 

To continue – 
supported by the 
Growth Hub 

Employment and Skills 
briefing 

Briefing for 
organisations involved 
in employment and 
skills 

To continue as needed 
and then absorbed into 
the Careers Hub 

Northampton 
Waterside Enterprise 
Zone 

Governance for the 
Enterprise Zone 

To continue, chaired by 
West Northants Council 

Luton Enterprise Zone Governance for the 
Enterprise Zone 

tbc 

Growth Hub Board Governance for the 
Growth Hub 

To continue 

Careers Hub Steering 
Group 

Governance for the 
Careers Hub 

To be formed in 24/25 

 

(24)



Central Area Growth Board Report 
14 February 2023 

Central Area Branding 
  

Report author
  

Sophie Lloyd 
Head of Economic Development, Milton Keynes City Council 

1. Recommendations 

1.1 That the Growth Board agree that: 

a) Leaders note the update provided by Whistlejacket at the 14 February 
meeting. 

b) In light of the findings, that a second stage of the naming and branding 
work is undertaken to rebrand the area of the six unitary authorities with 
a new name.  

c) The new name and brand should constitute a clean break from previous 
titles. 

d) The branding work should conclude as quickly as possible, noting the 
SEMLEP close date of the end of March 2024. 

e) That a Leaders meeting is arranged before the end of February for 
Whistlejacket to present the next stage of the branding working. 

f) If the new brand is not ready by March 2024, that a fall back position of 
using the current ‘South East Midlands’ branding, be investigated.  

2. Background 

2.1 At the 19 October meeting of the Central Area Growth Board, Leaders agreed 
that the Central Area Growth Board should appoint external branding 
consultants to provide advice on the future branding of economic work across 
the Central area/South East Midlands. 

2.2 As host authority for the Central Area Growth Board secretariat, Milton Keynes 
City Council ran an invitation to quote process in November 2023. Three 
agencies specialising in place branding were approached directly with a scope 
of works agreed with West Northamptonshire Council. Whistlejacket London 
were successful in this process and were appointed in November 2023. 

(25)

Item 6



2.3 Whistlejacket London have since undertaken a period of engagement with each 
local authority and the LEP, engaging with Leaders and Chief Executives across 
the Central Area, to build an accurate picture of each partner’s position and 
thoughts with regards to the future branding of the Growth Board and services 
previously delivered by the LEP. Whistlejacket have also engaged with the 
Chambers of Commerce in the area, the Federation of Small Businesses and 
further business representatives. 

2.4 The initial findings of this exercise are being shared at today’s (14 February) 
meeting of the Growth Board for update and for comment. Leaders are asked 
to note the update, and provide guidance on a number of issues to 
Whistlejacket so that branding work can progress to the next stage.  

2.5 The branding work is due to conclude by 31 March 2024, but it is recognised 
that colleagues at West Northamptonshire Council would benefit from timely 
decision on the future branding approach at today’s meeting, in order to ensure 
a subsequent identity for the services can be developed alongside the smooth 
transfer of people and assets. . A number of transitional activities are also 
dependent on the future branding direction including (but not limited to) 
branding, website (domain names), staff email addresses, and social media 
accounts which will become difficult to progress if a decision is not arrived at in 
a timely manner. 

 

(26)


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	2(a) Exempt Minutes
	4 LEP Transition Update
	5 Proposed Business Engagement Plans
	6 Update on Branding Exercise

